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d nﬂuua In their {ncontinent advance toward final liberatlon, the peoptes who have arizen
| and are wiping out crime, violations of human dignity and Imperialist license,
have exploded age.old lies used to subjugate and subdue — among them the
much-touted superfority of westerm clvil{zation and the concept of white

| supremacy.
Africa, exploited for centurles, has shattered many of these m¥ths in the course
of its palnful process of liberation and the Angolan epic has written “finis”

e onc¢ and for all to that of the mercenarics —whose “Invineibliity” was alresdy
somewhat less than convincing in view of the many recent examples of both
home.grown and imported varieties who turned tall and ran when faced with
the people’s damnation. Remember the final llberstion of Viet Nam, that of Cam.
bodia. the cnd of the attack on Playa Giron....

In Angola: an End ts the MercemarSes’ Myth, Raul Valdés Vivd gives us an §n-
depth story of a group of mercenaries, told in their own worde The dregs of a
soclety that Is on its way out, they range from the self-exiled gunman’s bodyguard !
— a professional killer who, like many of his cohorts, was a graduate of the war
in Viet Nam — to unscrupulous go-getters who would do snything for s fa:t buck,
considering it a lucky day wlen they could Increase tneir take through the

' simple expedient of kllling off unarmed “natives.”
But. in Angola. this myth came a cropper, for the heroic Angalan people were
far from unarmed, and the mercenaries found they could no lo.ager do as they
wished with impunity. Thelr “eagy money™ tutned out to be very hard to come I
by, indeed. and they had to pay for the murders they had committed — with
payment exacted either on the fiedd of battle or in 8 court demandlng baslc
justice for the victims of these hired klllers. !
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CHAPTER 3

A few dismol examples

Derek John Barker, from Bir-
mingham, England, said the whole
thing began when he was sitting in
a pub. He was half drunk when a
man he had never seen befere, and
whom he was sure he would never
see again, came over and offered to
buy him a drink.

¢l was a bit surprised, but [ must
say [ liked the idea. I was drinking
away my last savings..... a few
pounds or so. And all by myself,
too. I didn’'t even have enough
money for a cheap woman.'

Out of the blue, the man asked
him if he'd like to earn 8500 a
fortnight.

“I thought he was kidding. 1 said
what everybody says in a case like
that. I said, ‘Who am 1 supposed to
kill?” Of course, I was kidding, too."”

“You'll have to kill a few, It's
that Angola business."”

Derek John Barker went on to
say that, once he had made sure
that this was no drunkard’s joke. he
accepted the offer on the spot. For
some reason or other, he said. he
trusted the man.

The next day, after taking a good
shower and dressed in his best suit,
“in case the meeting was with some
top brass,” he went to the Tower
Hotel. in an out-of-the-way, quiet

' Unless otherwisc indicated, Engilsh quota.
tlons are retranslated from the Spanish.

part of London, which he had some
trouble loecating. There, he went up
to room 334, on the third floor, to
which the unknown man had given
him the key.

Since he had told the man that he
had been in the paratroop corps of
the Royal Air Force and had served
in Cyprus, Kenya, and Germany
from 1961 up until two years previ-
ously, when he was discharged
because of a brawl, Barker thought
that he would be jumping again.

“No. They told me all they needed
was infantry. Something easy.”

He was given a passport that was
in. order (he had taken the precau-
tion of bringing along several photos
of himself) and a card with the
initlals SAS (Security Advisory
Services). The man who egave him
these documents (an old, plump
man. who never took his pipe out
of his mouth and wore a striped
T-shirt — the very image of an old
ship's captain) told him to take
great care of them. And, above all,
to keep them from falling into the
hands of the enemy. even though the
enemy wasn't all that dangerous,
because “those savages are lost. It's
a question of hitting them hard.”

On interrogating Barker, the two
FAPLA members in charge of the
official proceedings were intrigued
by the fact that he mentioned a
meeting with Holden Roberto on
January 22, shortly after reaching
the capital of Zaire. However, no
matter how much the two comrades
and then [, myself, tried to pump
him, we didn’t learn anything
worthwhile about that meeting.

“It was a lunch affair.... It seems
as if President Holden was trying to




impress two US journalists who
were with him: Robin Wright, a
woman, and a man named...mmm

..Jet's see...I can't remember. All
[ was interested in was choosing a
good brand of whisky and getting it
on the rocks.”

According to Barker, the journal-
ists asked a lot of questions, but he
didn’t pay any attention, because
“the soldier who keeps his mouth
shut is the one who gets promot-
ed.” He barely rcmembered that the
two were on the flight to Sao Salva-
dor that he and five other merce-
naries were on. After that, he never
saw them again.

If he had been recruited the way
he said and he wasn't important in
the “business.” how come Holden
invited him to lunch along with 1wo
journalists? Barker swore that
everything had happened the way
he said it had.

The story told by another John,
John Namrmock, was just as vague as
Barker’s: Nammock spoke in a moao-
tone. and his voice was barely audi-
ble. The only interesting things were
the idea that Cailan had put into his
head. that "the Cubans und FAPLA
never took prisoners,” and that a
man bv the name of Banks had met
with him in the crypt of a church
located near the St. Georee Club
and that there were 200 other men
present at that meeting.

Nammock kncew by heart — and
he scarcely forgot a single word on
repeating it — the classified ad in
the Financial Times which led to his
going to Angola:

“Ex-military. Fancy a job
overseas, training servlces
division, good salary. Age
between 24-47, phone Leeds
702354 and 605541, between
10-7 p.m.” Unless my memory
fails me, that's the way it
went, more or less:®

T Quoted In the original text in English

He was almost right. His only
mistake was to say that the age
limit was 47 instead of 45, and thg

last four numbers of the first tele:

phone were in the wrong order. He
said 702354 instead of 705423. This
was verified later when checked
against the paper in question.

Nammock’s excellent memory
seemed to fade away quickly when
he was asked who might be behind
the man named Banks and about
the way the mercenaries treated the
people in Angolan villages.

His only reaction was to stare into
space, as if paralyzed by fear.

Another John, last name Lawlor,
was also attracted by the ad. Two
days after he read it. he got in touch
by telephone and was told to come
and see John Banks, whom he iden-
tified as one of the directors of SAS.?

Lawlor, a thin, freckled. extreme-
ly nervous 23-year-old. had been in
the Navy for five years and had
been in Cyprus and Malta

“I used to work in a repair shop,
but it was exhausting work. I
couldn’t get used to it. [ much pre-
ferred being a guard in a security
van — but that job didn't last long."”

He said he knew nothing about
polit:cs, either in England or in An-
gola.

Another mercenary — from the
United States — stuck to the same
story as the others. Nothing out of
the ordinary.

Gary Martin Acker was recruited
in an ‘“operation” carried out the
length of the West Coast by Banks'
counterparts in the United States:
David Bufkin and James Scott. The
former worked on his own, and the
latter posed as an agent for Co-op
for Soldiers of Fortune, a mysterious
charity organization that had begun
to pop up magically in a number of
cities.

There was a difference, though,
in the “material” these men were
looking for. Bufkin seemed to be

¥ The other direciors apparently are leslie
Askin, who trafficks in nrms. and Frank
Peren. former commander of the British
Roynl Navy. Banks him:eclf was a para-
traoper o the British Army,

interested in soldiers in general,
regardless of their experience, all
the way {rom paratroopers to Na-
rines — Gary Martin Acker, for ex-
ample. Scott. however, seemed to be
more discriminating in his selection.
His men had to meet the following
requirements:

1. Be a Viet Nam veteran.

2. Be able to handle tanks or
heavy machine guns or helicop-
ters.

Obviously, Scott was not acting on
his own; rather, he was the front
man in a much more ambitious plan.

To all appearances, Gary Martin
Acker first tried to enroll through
Scott, and when he was rejected he
enlisted through Bufkin. One way
or another, both men were linked to
the FNLA — that is, with the north-
ern front. (An intensive recruiting
campaign was also carried out by a
number of ‘“recruiting centers” for
the Savimbi southern front. Acker
recalled one set up with a great deal
of publicity by Larry Mitchell, a
black Viet Nam veteran. Acker tried
to enlist in this center, but Mitchell,
a black racist acting under orders,
was taking on blacks only, prefer-
ably if they came from among the
Cuban counterrevolutionary exiles
Mitchell's organization is called the
Afro-American Technical Assistance
to Angola. It is not known yet
whether he did or did not send a
large number of men to Angola.)

The statements made by Acker,
whose home address is 2342 Cork
Circle, Sacramento. California, veri-
fied the fact that Bufkin was offering

pay of $1200 a month and that, by
November 25. he was carrying out
the recruiting publicly. It was on
that day that Acker read the ad in a
local paper.

The course followed by the former
Marine was California-New York-
Paris-Kinshasa. In New York he
was joined by Argentine-born Grillo
— who was to become the head of
the group — and five other veterans.

Gary Martin Acker had held the

rank of Corporat in Jopan ana uc
Philippines after servlngl for five
and a half months in Viet Niam,
where he had an ogzorlunlty to use
his experience to the hilt in dealing
with the drug addicts in the US
Army.

“The number of drug addicts was
greater than the number of obr
casualties,”

Reticent and taclturn, refusing to
smoke even though — a ing
to his fellow men —~ he was an
inveterate smoker, Acker also re-
fused to answer anv questions relats
ed to his ideas, feelings, or reksons
for going back to war in a territory
which, as he admitted, he had to
locate with the aid of a map in a
dictionary, against people who had
nothing to do with him or his coun-
try.

He had no qualms, however,
about making derogatory remarks
about the Africans under Holden
whom he was supposed to train in
the handling of mines — using, he
said, Chinese nondetectable anti-
tank mines.

“There were some 400 of them,”
he said, “but every time they heard
an explosion, even from our own
guns, they'd yell ‘FAPLA!" and take
to their heels. [ asked my superior
officer to complain to General Gar-
cia, administration officer for the
FNLA, but he, too, was scared out
of his wits.”

In contrast to Acker and the
others, Malcolm McIntyre, a Scots-
man from Perth, talked about
himself all the time, trying his very
best to prove that he had been a
medic and nothing else, He said the
form Callan gave him to fill out
would prove it. He added that he
had filled out another form, also ap-
plying for a job as medic, in room
312 of the Park Court Hotel, in
London.

He said not a word about the war.
or about the other mercenaries.

As for Holden Roberto, “Who was

he?”




He said he was almost pleased to
have been taken prisoner, because
“I came here as 2 medic only to .,'rd
thev didn't even Have a hos |.x!¢

When he was told Y one of
FAPLA officers that hie AWnR SO
rades in arms had said they had seen
him throwing hand grepadis hic-
Intyre bowed his head and b.-um
into tears.

Michael Wiseman, in turn, eonzig-
ers hamgelf “a fagl” Whai makes
him say that?

"Me and a friand O{ n
take old care APart and
that were still in good condition. I
Wwas making good money that was.
[ was my own boss, and [ eqauld givie
my kids things that I coulds't cw“
dream of when 1 wae out of wor 2,
Unil T way stupid encugh o teawe
ail that"

Why not “ambitious enoagh'™

And what aboutl serunloe?

Wiseman may not be able tg u-i.
the difference. but taking peopls
apart is no tt he same as iaking o]d
r.ar‘- anart — | ven thouph the people

slle

iin(- wsed" W
1seil the paris

gre “natives.'
Wiseman didn't sav s word about
that. “I hope mv friend 5 still going

on with the business, If ¥ ever have

the chance to go back I'll never
leave it. Not for anything in the
world.”
CHAFTER 3§
As he rold it

Now, let's iake a look at Callan's

versionof the same event. He -un'le
this on his own initiative and a
that it be inelucded g his 4{ile
sent 1t here ewactly as
down:

“Then [[’]ey tnld me to ge ¢ ¢
quela,. because namn:‘. fziol h1u
en into the hands of the enemy, At
thal "me 1 had only ten !-up;ua‘l"
soldiers directino gprinn
all the time, Y2 had b
nearly two weelts, natra
stantly to keep m\rsv'-"'
on where the eremy
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time, aiwa}'r. on the alert. If the
enemy had known how weak we
were, iney wouid have won in @

singie night: the men were nervous
angd ured (not those who were pro-
{essicnals). Holden Roberto had told
us that more men were r'mwxm and
!nlal [ should hoid firm ne matter
what, and &very man on the {ront
wWas anxiciis over the arrival of
those men so as to feave the border
a&%d jlo on the offensive for a changs,
“They arrived days  later,
Afier a mesl, a cup of tea, and 3
rest, ncy were formed un outsida
mr yecently constructad heacdquar-
ters  in ‘!aq\.eh After rasidly
taking stock of them all, 1 found
two old gents in their 50s. I asked
Now many veors' service they had,
whith was arousr \u 20 to 22 »ears
eacn, aiid which battalions thev'd
been in und a ceuple of other detaile,
Just routine procedure sa as to have
Somé ideés of their camabilities, [
told them I was glad to have them
and glad abuitt their past experienca,
‘md I put them in charge of the
others, th were Serg 'eant Maiors,
very pable men, I m]d thie
rest of f(he men 1 was happy
to nave them in my company and
frankiy 1 began to cstablish ruleg
ang regu;a'ion:. and iron discipling,
and emphasized the point that [
made to tiem that fram then on [
didn’t waint to hear that they were
mercenanes alid that thev were 2
part ol a disciplined unit, end disci-
pline wis more important there
becguse the temmatiom were
Kreater, I aiso emphasized that, since
there wasi't any galiows where we
were, any man lound guilty of
n:euku.g me oxle of discipline with
me l‘fuu.a as the British Army,

1wo

lht. AT
any man who broke those rules (and
X put a lot of emphasms on this)
wouid be shot. 1 asked if anybady
aldn’t accept this form of dxwpllne

fe siistid leave right away. Nobody
‘Tl(_i‘\,'eu

“After this 1 wuched on whera
the enemy was, our present strategy,
what type of equipment the enemy
nad, how smali a force we were
and I ¢xpiained that I intended to

i




RO against the tanks and the kind
of antitank [ intended to use, e. g.,
a small Killer Group penetrating
deep behind the enemy lines, As
s00n as ] firished my cutlined plan
of action, they started whisparing
amiong themselves,

“Then I started asking ecck: man
what battalion he'd been in and
what work he’d done in it, so as tc
learn what their canabilities were.
Al this point it all ctarted coming
out, they begun telling me thev
hadi’t known we'd be geing agsinst
the enemy so seon, and especially
against tanks and that they didn’t
want enything to do with it [ aclred
them what they were doing here
then. and they looked at me angrily
and said they'd thougin it wopld Yo
different.

T placed alll thase who didn’:
want to Ro to the front on one side
and those that wanted to on ihe
other.

“At tils poinl, a scldier brought
me a message from President Hol-
den Roberto saying the enemy was
breaking thremgh the front at Tom-
boco on ome flank and asking it §
could go right there to stap them.

“l fold the men what the meszan

[, 1]

Siode g
said, and asked for 20 men and a
106-mam anti-tank gun to be teady

to move off that minute; the men
who didn't want to fisht woiild have
to wait here and make theinselves
useful until I returned frons Tombo-
o, before they counld oo off whes-
ever they wanted, Befare leaving, I
ordeted my RSM' to go behind the
tanks with the rest of the mej), there
were arourd 20 of them. because, if

they pot claser to Maguela andiq

didn't meet any resictance they'd k-
able {0 break through te cur position
which was what they were alrzsdy
doing.

“It tock me five houre to gel to
Sdc Satvador 1jacausa it had rained
the night before and it was very

' Regimental Sergeant Maigr,

hard soing. On reaching Sio Sa
dor. I found that the situation wagn
a2 bad as I'd imagined ancl that somes
body iz Tomboco had panicked i
it and that had mada ihe situation
worse than it really was. I turned
my small foree of 26 men bick from
20 Saivador for the march bacie to
quela,

Somie 20 kilometers feom Maque-
Ia, I came across some English sol-
diers and they toki me briefly that
Maquela had Geen taken and that
thare was a force of 20 tanks and o
loi of infantry there. I went on @ hit
more and found that all of them
were in & smail town,

*1f was exactly 2:00 in the morn-
ing, #nd, if the enemy should decide
to move, whicti wasn’t likely, we
ccld hizar him coming, that’s why
I depioyed my forces in a defensive
pogition and wsited for daybreak.

“The aexi day [ sent & small
patrol cut aleaud to go into Maguels,
and found out that the enemny w
forming ranks. and perhaps it'3 fing
out what'd happened to the rest of
my fOmpsny.

“1 devided I'd find a good defen-
sive pesiticn, dig trenches, use dy-
namite to <iear @ smail stretch, and
wait for the esemy. Around 2:00 in
the afteriioon we saw a jeep coming
toward us. I had a iooir through the
vinceulars and recognized the RSM
and some of my men.

“Hedsld me there wasn't any ene-
my in hiaguela and that the men
who were: xetling lined un were his
own men. I calied all the men t1o-
gether, and we weni to Maquela and
wheli weé arrived the rest of my

IMpany was there, I immediately
begen Invesiijgating to find out just
what had happened while I'd been
awray.

"It appeared thai one section of
the men in the RSM’s group had
gone vack i get food and had
sirapiy taken off. They were the man
wiho kada't wanted to go to the {ront
with anti-tank grenades and the {ive
FMs. ¥ was carrying out my investi.
gation  when i{he two Sergeant
Majors told me the group had met
and wias planning a mutiny so ag
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0 go its own way and that it was
the ones who were aware of the
full meaning of the word ‘merce-
nary' and liked it who were con-
spiring. The Sergeant Majors toid
me all this,

“At thie point | hud iioped they
would have undergtoss the serious.-
ness of the situation ihey were in
and ts grave consequences . Slo I
asked once morsz if they gt~ ome
o fight five et Fped fonvrard, the
rest staved where they weres |
explained that in the Brilish Army

m

2

the sentence fop aevertion  end
muliny was death by hanging ang
that here they wonid be shot, To
them, this was g joke, I could see
from their f{aces that they thoughi
it wae all 2 tremen joke,

‘I killed the vingiczder of tjre
group, and the rest war
the same end by ot
company.”

So resd COallarg handwritten,
signed declaration, dated March 4,
1978,
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CHAPTER 1)
A gecd plam, bt . . . .

Why Callan?

Why white mercenaries in Ango-
la?

The answers haye their roots in
many already detz:mined situadions.
Other paths had slready failed. The
patriotism of the Angolan peopie
and the internationalism of the revo.
lutionary pecples hag ciosed off ail
other roads.

The internal countes revolutionary
forces —. thase : and
vimbi — had alreng:; arrived at the
point at whish »

I ) A
13 nc-n!:

)
-
[T

: » @iofe, ecild not
contain — far less beat! — ihe
MPLA, whick had hiown up into

a eyclonn,
[t was alresdy possitle to see the
cracking of the Souih African racist

¥ One of thexp five wis Revlo Johns Biug.
chanl. Mis aceorynt roniradists Calian's,

forces. Had they taken Luanda in

the “lightning

war” — begun with

nearly 150 tanks advancing from the
southern border 41 5 spsea of 85
kilometers g day, until they wer-e

Stopped short.

that &5 they could”

have turried the capital of Angola
into the tomb of the Peaple's Repus-

lic and & new
most brutal

Jerusalem under the
enemy  oecupanon,

o

However, when this ulan hag to be
Cast aside because of the couniorai.

tacks of Fapr,
10 assign the regular Souih African
troops the miission of fighting i ihe

A, it wag je

-

variousi frontls nftha milllan-square-
kilometer teeritory, They were

farced into ignominicus rotreat tn
the south (Cun.

faced with F

APLA encip
and worldwide condemnaticn

ere) and thén when

subject Narnibia

It was a question of s

may,” with not

The fact tha

action — white

— were used also stemmag
myth that enveloped
nad the last word §

times,
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Morecyai, as there's 4 Umit now to
the disdein that can be shown
toward the international community,
the use of mercenaries presented
the possibility of alleging that they

Were not sent

in response o the

policy of any imperialtss Power og

such.

This is why Callan, the indivige
is who he is apgd Whv the Cai

ihis world, the Phenomensn o
mercenaries, arpe necaalonialism:

covert slavery, j
gression.

Holden Roberty msde a big thing
of telling the prees —. a’l 1hlj

Ity was all part

he hoped to gat

9

ntervention, snd ag-

of the game — that

her “ng fever thar

000 soldiecs of fortune.”

In the milita;
testimony, ang
that a guerrilla

northern front wass planned as

resort to draw ¢
before it was to
nave a hetter

dating the scuth

v field, documenis

eventz have shown
Var on the reeling

-y
ft the engmy foic
& late a
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The operational pian of such a
guerrilla war was craftily written
up as a plan for the secession of the
territories adjacent to neighboring
Zaire and Zambia.

Something similac was planned
for the southern front, should the
right moment arrive. There were
hundreds of mercenaries there al-
ready: Portuguese, who weren’t
going to take decolonization lying
down,

In both cases, the plans included
the oreation of “sanctuaries” on
foreign soil. near the Angolan bor-
der, from which men and matériel
would be supplied to the counter-
revolutionary guerrillas. In addition,
arms and munitions would be plant-
ed in caches inside Angola. (FAPLA
units are finding them by the hun-
dreds of tons))

Topographically, there was enough
logic in the idea of combining
“sanctuaries” and “hit-and-run”
guerrilla actions. Both southern Mo-
xico and the extensjve Cuando Cu-
bango district adjoining Zambia and
Namibia ‘have very thick forests, few
roads, and wide rivers with strong
currents — rivers that make the
onlooker think of the sea. In the
rainy season, the rivers swell to
{lood enormous areas. With this tez-
rain in their favor, everything would
seem to indicate that, even if they
didn't manage to establish control
anywhere in Angola .itself, the ene-
mies of the Angolan people would
at least be able to set up multiple
centers fn this “no-man’s-land.”

In short, plans were drawn up for
large-scale acts of aggression in the
future, to follow immediate plans of
disrupting the peaceful construction
of a new society based on true jus-
tice and freedom.

A middle-range strategic objective
consisted of taking over all the
northern part of Luanda Province
and southern Moxico, both of which
are very rich in diamonds.

In order to achieve all the

above, there was no time to be lost

in doing whatever might be required

to hold onto the province of Santo

Antonio do Zaire. There, the white

mercenaries would be decisive,

But not they alone. According to

the declarations of members of the
FNLA who were taken prisoner and
the testimony of the daughter of one
of the FNLA commanders who lives
in Ambrizete, Chinese military ad-
visers urged that the two bridges
over the M'bridge River, first line
in the defenses of the province, be
blown up. Considering that — in line
with its global counterrevolutlonary
line — Maoism allied itself openly
with imperialism, racism, and fas-
cism against the Angolan Revolu-
tion, this is just as natural as the
presence of an English Callan and a
Yankee Gearhart among the white
mercenaries. Didn't Peking go as far
as trying to justify South African
aggression before the UN Security
Council — which even Washington
hadn’t dared to do?

On January 4, FAPLA and its
staunch Cuban allies showed that,
for them also, time was an impor-
tant factor, by liberating Negage and
Carmona, key points in the province
of Vige, and so striking a crushing
blow against the new strategy of
the foreign interventionists and
their lackeys.

The liberation of Carmona, in
particular, was a key turning point,
The ceiling, by then already cracked,
started to cave in on Angola’s
enemies.

It was like placing the last shovel-
ful of earth on the casket containing
the initial delirious dream of a
“lightning war,”” a human safari, a
militacy parade to Luanda with Hol-
den taking along invitations for the
victory reception and puffed-up
South African chiefs bringing
women for the gala ball. Now they
would have to beat a fast retreat.

Holden Roberto was through. He
had more imacgination for cele-
brating the victory than for winning
it. The CIA was forced to resort to
another of its creatures.

But what exactly for?

After consulting with experts
from several general staffs. Callan,
it would seem, drew up a plan for
the defense of northern Angola,
built around the line between Dam-
ba and Maquela do Zombo. This pian
was primarily aimed at hanging
onto the city of Santo Antonio do
Zaire. which controls the mouth of
the Zaire River and is an ideal spot
for sending in supplies by air and
sea. For the former, it has a 2200-
meter airstrip; and, for the latte_r.
a magnificent deep-water Atlantic

rt.

From this place. it would alsn be
possible to control not only the Zaire
River — a decisive position — but
also the entire southern flank of the
thin spit of land in Zaire that bor-
ders on the southern part of the An-
golan enclave of Cabinda. It was the
protection of this flank that deter-
mined the blowing uvo of the two
bridees over the M'bridee River, 60
kilometers south of the Zaire River.

Callan understood that he ought
to deploy some forces in the area
between the two rivers, and he
assigned this task to the new bat-
talion of Holden Roberto’s “natives”
and the reinforcements — also “na-
tives" — that an emissary from Sa-
vimbi had promised to send in a
secret meeting held in Kinshasa,

*“Colonel” Callan and his white
mercenaries would cover the main
position (between Damba and Ma-
quela do Zombo).

It had als» been forescen that the
best tactical solution would be to
carry out irregular actions along
with the defense of advantageous
positions (blockade), denending on
the lack of communication brought
about by the blowing up of bridges
and the laroce-scale use of mined
accesses and fields.

As for logistics, Callan's bases
would be in S&o Salvador. where
abundant stores of Chinese and US
weapons were located.

Most of tho combat ecuioment —
T-54 tanks, multiple rocket launch-
ers, 122-mm howitzers. 75-mm

cannon, mortars, 127-mm antiair-
craft machine guns and rifles —

had come from Peking (the last
shipments made just prior to the
disaster).

M-1 and M-2 rifles; Law M-72
antitank rocket launchers: 106-mm
recoilless guns: M-79 grenade launch-
ers; and 60-, 81-, and 108.7-mm mor-
tars had been sent from the Umted
States.

Antipersonnel and antitank mines
had been obtained in France. And to
the above must be added Panhart
combat cars, which are actually self-
propelled cannon able to attain
speeds of 100 kilometers an hour: the
AML-60, with. 80-mm mortars. and
the AML-90, with 90-mm canncn,
The turrets on these vehicles make
them look like light tanks.

Recalling — with more fantasy
than truth — great exploits in Ma-
laysia, Callan preached active de-
fense as the method of strugele:
that is, to attack the enemy in order
to hold onto one's position. As may
be deduced from the testimony of
various prisoners and captured doc-
uments, his auxiliary operation was
to be that of infiltrating troops from
Zaire through Massau and putting
the pressure on Sanza Pombeo, in
the FAPLA rear.

A good plan — on paper.

But was it really drawn up that
way? _ :

Many things — including Callan’s
own words as I heard them — back
up these conjectures.

However, there's room for argu-
ment as to what the enemy was
going to do if the MPLA liberated
all ot Angola. )

Below, we transcribe what was
asked of Callan in this regard. What
goes counter to his other statements
shouldn’t surprise anybody and
doesn't make the document any the
less interesting. 1.

In the shaky handwriting of a
schoolchild who hasn’t yet rcached
the fifth gcade, Callan wrote:

4] pever was in any meeting or
actually discussed the theme of fu-
ture plans of action if Angola should




fsll into the hands of the MPLA,
with anyone, at any level. The rea-
sun i3 that [ perscually think that
there &7¢ 7o such pians and that if
such plune exisi they must be iripos.
sible 0 tealize,

“The only pien fhat | rimiember,
for whai would happen if Angoia
sheuld fall, was between two mings-
ters and that was a discussion after
the fall 6f Carmona, This conversa-
lom was based on if they jost niore
ground they would have 15 go i ihe
jungle end fight with guerrilla tac-
tics becsuse ihat Is what all their
troeps could do; their soldiers didn't
have sny notion at all of convention-
! warfars

“if they decide to wage gnerrills,
warlare as a war campaign along
the border with Zaire, they'd Se
g for a lost cause. First, they
have ic come up with a rear guard
1o provide them with the materials
needed {or the war, they'll see thai
s vory difficult Second, t win in
A guerrilla war, you have to have
the pevple of the country in wvhicn
you're golng (¢ carry cut the opera-
i ¢ side. And all T've

the

learned ahog MPLA from my

Hmuted experience shows that they

have a sense of helonging and uniiy

which make ihem K by thelr

cause, somiething i've never seen on

the FNLA, side, ceranse its lesders
L

[+]

or themselves ang

ana

;0

their pockets, not the pevpie,

“If any such plans axisted 1 never
knew anvthing about thiem. For the
reasons l've mentioned above, any
action by the FNLA would be 3

mistaike "
[3
[

What happened, apari from the
plane?
How did the “naiiva™ auxiliary

force and the white mercénary force
come a cropper?

The “native” force, raised nastily,
fell 7ot so much in combat but rati.
er at a reeylt 5? the progrossive de-
compositicn &f the FNLA — an in.
strument buflt up by the CIA over
mMors than & decade, whose horribie

crimes run from the burning of ene
tire villages and the o ihﬂdﬁ

ey o

murder of women and

the refrigeratos
FNLA “ministes™,

John Barker, one of the white
rnercenasies who pave a ~lapdash
training course to the new pative™
mercenaries, ststed that Holden
8ave him 200 men for three Semipas
nies and thst, after thres WEEKs,
desertions had so decimated their
ranks that there were cnly ensugh
for haif a platoon, whick wae Saptan
by FAPLA in its very first clazh,

The foreign mercenary force -
begin to be demnaralized as so0n ay
it saw that the Angolan patriots had
modern Soviet wesnans and wera
being supnorted by fheir Ciban
allies, who had been called in sy
President Neto ta defend. along with
the freedom cf Angols. that of Af:i.
@ a5 2 whole and thst of all peoples
stending up to imnarigliyn,

The 14 mercenaries wha réfused
10 g0 to the front and asked te be
left in the areas where thie “natiyes”
were  being  trained roflect the
clegree of demoralization among $he
paid killers.

The murder of the 14 mercenagiae
in cold bload and Callan's cry cf
“Here. the Iaw is a hullet” when he
shot one of his men in the head.
were the catalvais of a process of
total decay in people who wess vor.
ten to the core. the mrodust of an
equaily rotten system.

Here, we have » white mercenury,
his hand out, his empty head waiting
to be filled with visions of blasis
stumbling through their own wlood:
a man who eringes in fear befors his
superior officer and Lefore the
enemy,

Tre order “Kil}, or I'll ki you™
may very well move a paid killer to
shoot — but this doetn't mean tha!
ka's reacly to die.

The 30-vear.long myvih of the
white mercensiries, arriving by
iegion or emerging suddenly fr
nowhere as vast armies, was
stroved in a mattsr of threa weoks,
and neocoionialisy lost one cf




sharp fangs. Now, neocolonialism is
like a wild animal that cringes be-
fore the blows of a whip handled by
an expert tamer. It may be able to
hire other mercenaries, but the
secret of how to beat them is now
known,

In a nutshell, what happened with
Callan was that the news of his
havinf murdered his own men was
quickly made known abroad through
deserters, who used it as a pretext
for breaking their contracts —
because they more than suspected
that defeat was imminent. Since the
scandal jeopardized the arrival of
new contingents already under
contract, the CIA issued orders to
Holden Roberto to make it known
over Radio Kinshasa, on February
i, that the “Colonel” had been
dismissed, along with his Lieuten-
ant, Sammy Copeland, and that he
would be court-martialed.

Cn the same day, Radio Kinshasa
announced that the General Staff of
the ENLA, the FNLA's military
force, had named Major Mayn
McRoblnson and Peter McAleese (no
rank was mentioned) as the new
chiefs of the white mercenaries.

On February 9, in an evident at-
tem pt to keep the criminal maniac’s
British citizenship a secret and to
encourage the flow of mercenaries,
the BBC of London, in its 7:30 a.m.
broadcast, reported as follows: “We
have news that the leader of the
FNLA, Holden Roberto, issued or-
ders for the imprisonment and court-
martialing of the commander (a
Greek), but it has been confirmed
that the latter escaped into the
jungle.”

Some of the captured mercenaries
88y that Callan — he hasn't con-
firmed this yet — learned about his
diimissal and pending trial over Ra-
dio Kinshasa and that this led him
to think of a commando-type action
fn the FAPLA rear so as to regain
his prestige with his master and
maintain his post.

Callan's luck ran out at 18:00

hours on February 1, somewhere to
the south of Quibocolo, in a village
2 little larger than the typical Ango-
lan zenzala of six to eight mud huts.

He carried out his desperate action
— but the outcome was not what
was expected.

Callan ordered that 20 merce-
naries be taken in four British
Range Rovers and a French armored
personnel canrier to the position
chosen by him. The vehicles were
withdrawn as soon as the men got
out so as to make it easier for them
to keep under cover. The men were
divid jnto two groups, Callan
employing the classic military tactic
of the US Army: the Killer Group
and the Reconnaiscance and Support
Group. :

The Killer Group was to mount a
surprise attack on the enemy col-
umn, which the second group was
to locate. That column was advanc-
ing northward from Damba with
the objective of consolidating the
great victory FAPLA had obtained
the day before in Quibocolo and the
surrounding area: the annihilation of
a furious counterattack launched by
mercenary forces. killing 19, wound-
ing 16, and destroying the enemy's
main means of combat.

It was midmorning when Callan
became aware of the presence of the
FAPLA column, and that was when
he placed his men in ambush and
waited for dusk. He thought that,
with a rainy day, an overcast sky,
and the advantages offered by the
terrain, his forces would be able to
carry out a successful attack and
escape unharmed.

The target he chose, therefore, was
a part of the column made up of two
jeeps and, a little farther back, a
truck. Opening up with cross fire,
the mercenaries killed two of the
occupants of the first vehicle and
wounded two others.!

1 When one of these two — by then recov-
ered rom his wounda — presented himself
before Callan, the mercenary said it was
imposgsible that anyone could have out-
lived the attack, and. if anyon¢ had, ft
should be blamed on the cowardice of his

L] 2 !
ial victory, Cal- God we didn't come acrass any o
lagr‘gtﬁdor:}tbi‘gigtn?hev temgtation them. And, during the day, we were

of using bis rocket launchers against

afraid that the Africans would find

i thought we’'d never
truck, which had speeded up US, because we g
wgennil& occupants heard the ma- come out of it alive.

chine-gun fire. Callan opened up.

The explosion that ensued — accord-

Armed only with clubs and their

own fists — but always showing re-
pect for thelives of the vanquished,

ing to the prisoners, still terrified g 'characteristic of those belonging to
at the thought of it — was like a the MPLA and something which
volcanic eruption followed by tre- giyes them dignity — a group of

mendous spurts of detonations in a

ragged but courageous peasants cap-

phantasmagoria of sparks, like 4 o4 the mercenaries.

fireworks, that lasted for 20 minutes.

The truck had been transporting a
variety of projectiles and explosives.

The shock wave killed three mer-
cenaries, and shrapnel from the gre-
nades wounded Callan in the back
and one leg. Meanwhile, almost all
the attackers were stunned by the
terrible blast of air. FAPLA comba-
tants immediately began to arrive
on the scene, and they wiped out
almost all the members of the.Klller
Group and many of those in the
other group, who were panic-strick-
en and started to run helter-skelter,
going against their very objective of
getting away from the area as
quickly as possible.

Even so, in the general confusion,
Callan was sufficiently quick-witted
to have four of his henchmen carry
him away from the spot. They took
him to a hut, left him there, and
then took off into the jungle when
they found that patriotic forces were

roaching.

apgn Febnfary 5 Callan was arrest-

ed, and the fugitives were captured

two weeks later. The peasants kept
on looking until they tracked them
down.

The peasants went out, arrped only
with their hatred for the crimes the
mercenaries had committed, and
combed the area until they lqcated
them. For 14 days, with nothing to

t but mangos, the mercenaries
f:!ed in vaing to reach the _Zazre
River. One of them, Colin Clifford
Evans, was captured naked as he
tried to swim across the river.

“At night, we were afraid that the
wild animals would eat us up. Thank

CHAPTER 12

| afrecdy knew him

I knew very well who Callan was
even before I had him in front of me
and talked with with him under the
almond tree in the patio of the PIDE
prison — the living tomb for genera-
tions of revolutionaries. the scaffold
for countless numbers of them. To-
day, the prisoners are the counterre-
volutionaries and foreign white mer-

cenaries.
Utolo and Kisueira® the two
FAPLA officers now question-

ing the hired killers, were both
beaten, tortured with sadistic re-
finement, and humiliated by the
Portuguese colonialists.

This prison is, moreover, a place to
be seen by all the friends of Angola.
The revolution \évascborp here. It is
Angola's Moncada Garrison:

Agt dawn on February 4, 1961, the
prison was stormed by men who had
seized some weapons in an attack on
a police jeep a few minutes carlier
but who were mostly armed with
machetes. The constant rebellion of
the prisoners, who had the support
of more than one Portuguese police-
man with anticolonialist views, and
the rumor that they were to be de-
ported sparked the operation. An-
other factor that influenced the
timing of the operation was that

1 Ia Xumbundo, these two war pames mean

Freedom and Avenger.




about 20 foreign journalists were in
Luanda, They had come as a result
of the rumor — which later proved
1c be falsz — that renrique Galvyo,
iormer coioniaj officia; who hgd e¢-
€3ped from jail in Poriugal and
whnose repute dated back to 1947
when he denounced the Dractice pof
slave labor in Angola, was heading
for Luanda with the Portuguiese shin
ke had seized in the Atlantic: the 13-
Iicus Sanis Marfa. Their presence
cula assure international publicity
the operation,

However, the ship didn’t come,
and the simultaneous attacks on the
PICE prissn and on other prisons
faiieq, -

Neediess io say, the reprisals were
of Nazi dimensions: sorne 30 N0
Angsians were assassinated in the
streeisso £ Luanda, in hamletg in Ce-
tete ang ail over the countrv. Ma-
ch‘me-gun.':ed, burned with napalm.
Tua  over by bulldozers (whole
groups were bound and taid ot
along ithe road). ...

i repeai, I knew Callanl pafors 1
actually saw him. I carpe to know
him: through his guards, who are the
exact opposite of him and whose
voices echined back in the silence
inside those walis - wally that are

55
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than a Sergeant in the paratr
forces, and the first thing he
when he became commander of the
mercenaries was to prociaim nimge|f
‘Colonal’ When he wasweipiured, he
iried 16 make beljeve he was a doc-
tor, assuming the iqentity of a man
wha iz very ikely o of the ‘brains’
behind the wheje mereriary oper-
ation: Dr Bediord. fle said that
hs was Di. Bediord, the director of
a hosnital in Sio Salvador (ihis Was
Bediond's cover — 4 garnson was
located there), anid that he had come
to  vieit one of ki falhier’s oig
friends. He meniicied {ne name of
2 man who must have been on2 of
Bedford's bse; friends: the banker
Carlcs Ferreira, one ¢! the most
reactionary men durisg the colonial
pericd. It would seem that Callan
hoped that Perreirg wouid be ques-
tionsd  and thai he would pull
strings in the world o nis behaif,
When he had ne aiternative Sut to
he still kept
tying, alwayg trying to pretend that
f intocent as a jamb, When
d — taking advarn-
hat we are revoju.
tionavies, truly civilizeg peopie, and
22! 51 even insult prison.
ers, 25 you have seen for yourself
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a clear example of the Arabisy, jn-—_- Callan anly acknowledged vwhat

fluence on cortuguese acchitecturs.
in Angola. I the background could
be hesrd the birds chirping away a«
they fiew from branch to biranch, ¢n
the 2imorid trees. Those who ara fa.
miliar wiih the excenitional warm.
heartedness of the pecpie of Angala
will reslize that there was 10 trace
of hatred in their lilting volces ag
they spaica 10 me.

“Calian’s ;ea} name, so he says, iy

% (eorgiou, of Greek-Cypriat
birth. Britisk cltizen. Since 1962 he
has lived at @ Drunswick Strest,

ndoiz,

“If we were to describe him in g
single word, it Wwoulcl be this: fake.
A fake through and through, He
80€s all out o take on the personal-
ity he doasn’t have, He was no more

nhe could no longer contitiue to deny
in view of the irreiutable evidence.
When ke finally admitted to oeing a
mersepary, he denied ceing & com-
mander.  When this was denion-
straizd, h ving given the
order ic assassinate 14 of Lils own
men, aid, whan he finally acknow]-
edged this, hic deniod having shot
the spokesman of tha dissatisfied
Rroup once in the head and twice in|
the back. But when ha coniaised to
this in writing — 2fter we had cited
to him the nzmes of many wiinesses
whom we al=9 have in detention —
he ook on 3 mignanimous air,
cilaiming he ofen genarvis in
having had t shot rather than
hanged, as i omary in Eqglang
with ssldie, > Teluse 1o fignt!
“Cellan = & fke whs RudWs no
bounds. He said he nad asiked Mis

men f2 !save him beiind and Kve
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themselves when he'd been wounded
after the exploslon of the truck he
had fired on. In actual fact, he had
forcod them — at gunpoint and
through the very terror he instilled
in his subordinates, even when
wounded — to carry him for a day
and a half 10 the house where we
caplured him. He still denies having
spent 1I§ree and a half years in jail
for having robbed a post office in
England; he swore that he had never
sexrved time for a common crime.”

“Colonel” Callan soon confirmed
the view of his captors: his fak-
ery showed through.

The following is a part of our
conversation:

“Why did you become a merce-
nary?”

“l was unemployed. There are
about a million unemployed in En-
giand now. One million four hun-
dred thousand. The pound sterling
has Iztllen so much it’s not worth a
scr:;_[;.’

“How much were you paid?”

“A hundred and fifty gounds a
week."’

“What would you have done if the
MPLA paid double that amount?”

:‘Gone over to the MPLA."

‘Then you have no politiaal
ideas.”

“None in the least. I'm a hundred
percent apolitical.”

“You are only interested in
money?"

“Well... no.... Erase what 1 said
before, I beg you. Erase it or we
won't go on talikng.... That last
about the money. It makes me seem
like an animal.”’

“Then you do have political ideas.
Since money doesn't motivate you,
your convictions do. Is that it?”

*“No. I told you I'm apoliticaL"”

“Then what is it?"”

“] don’t fight for money or for
ideas. [ fight because I'm a soldier.
I don’t have any other trade. You
have to like your work. don't you?”’

“Does that include killing workiug
people in your own country?

“Soldiers have to use arms.”

At another point in the converse-
tion, when he learned from one of
the FAPLA officers that there had
been a lull in the fighting for sev-
eral weeks, Callan rubbed his hands
in glee and said, “The war's about to
end! When 1 get out Il tell my
adventures. It'll be a best-seller.”

“But what about the accounts
that have to be squared in En-
gland?”

“The 14 also came to kill. They
weren't angels. It wasn't my inten-
tion, but I freed Angola of them.
That's a fact. They wanted to kil
in the villages and not fight at the
front.... It is rlso a fact that | knew
everything Holden Roberto was
thinking of doing. [ know the north-
ern front by heart. If I were free, I'd
be able to remember allthe spots
where large arms caches were
hidden for Holden’s guerrillas. . ..”

(Callan spoke to me of those who
“wgnted to kill in the villages.” But
I dnc_ln't have to wait long before I
obtained more explicit reports on
the role played by this maniac of a
killer 1n Angola.)

From London an international
news agency provided more infor-
mation abqut the outrages, thefts,
:'md pther crimes commiited by the
“soldiers of fortune” hired by the
CIA and the responsibility of the
self-styled “Colonel Callan.”

The dispatch reads as follows:

Peter McAleese, one of the
British mercenaries who par-
ticipated in the defeated ven-
ture against Angola, who
returned to England last week
from Zaire, declared that
Costas Georgiou (Callan)
directed the massacre of 160
Angolans in a village near the
northern town of Maquela do
Zombo. McAleese said that
Callan reached the village,
told all the men to line up,
and then ordered the merce-
naries to open fire.!

Ufolo had warned me that Callan
did all he could to avoid giving
concrete information about his
having served in the British forces
stationed in Cyprus, his place of
birth; Borneo; Malaysia; and North-
ern Ireland (having started off
denying it all, of course). I asked
him about this on several occasions,
but he didn’t say anything concrete.
Oniy the following:

“In Cyprus, I never harmed any-
body. You must write that down.
Anyone who does bad things in the
place where he was born is a savage
animal.”

However, Callan had forgotten
dates, names of bases, and other
details regarding the island where
he was born.

How did Callan came to be Cal-
lan?

Without going into the past —
which one day will become known
and is not too difficult to imagine
— his Angola venture began in the
Zambeze Club, one of the many
bars-cum-brothels, smelly and al-
ways smoky, seemingly in imitation
of the thick smog of the streets of

the larger London of the poor,

He had been attracted to the Zam-
beze Club by an irresistible magnet:
a classified ad which appeared for

2 Two eyewitnesses, Luis CaAndido Cordeiro

and Vasco Arnsldo Guimaraes de Castro.
both photographers for Luanda newspa-
pers have submitted new evidence to
those drawing up the indictment §n the
case against the mercenaries. Cordefro
s3id he saw (their {aces even, through
the telescopic iens of his camera) Por-
tuguese. French, Chinese, and Zafrean
mercenasies in different parts of tke
northern (ront in January of this year. In
the hamlct of Barra do Dande he hid at
a distarce of oniy 49 meters from some
20 metcenaries and saw them order
FNLA sgoldiera who — with the active
participation of the foreigners in many
cases — then began the systematic de-
struction of homes in which people had
been shackled or tied,
Guimaraes said he ssw & white com-
mander 0of an FNLA group called FUN-
GUTA In the Samba Caji area (near
Carmona) open fire on several oid people
who refused to follow the FNLA troops
in their retrest. He also saw the man
mashine-gun cattle.

two consecutive days not only in the
Daily Telegrapb but also in the re-
spectable Financial Times,- which
speaks for the interests of those at
the highest level in the smaller Lon-
don of the rich.

After looking, him over suspi-
ciously, like an officer inspecting the
troops, a waiter directed him to a
man at a table somewhat removed
from the center of the room and the
lamps: a perfect observation point.
Callan quickly agreed with John
Banks on a price, but the final
contract was to take a couple of
days. Banks obviously needed time
to check Callan's story.

Even though we do not know the
details (this was the pre-Angola
period), we can deduce that Callan
was already what he is now from the
comment John Banks made when he
heard about the killing of the merce-
naries;

“Callan is a capable military lead-
er, but he is cruel and sadistic.”

The investigation clearly satisfied
Banks, who was a man who knew
what he wanted. His all-powerfui
OK was placed beside the signature
of this tall thin man with actor’s
eyes,slightly sleepy looking, opening
wide to give his remarks — at times
emphatic, at times pitiful — an air
of sincerity and compassion.

That same day John Banks also
gave the OK to three other veterans
with a similar history: Peter Mc-
Aleese, Sammy Copeland, and Nick
Hall. Shortly afterward he also

OK'd Charles Cristadellus, who was
related to Callsn and a first cousin
of Ronna, his girlfriend.

It's not for nothing that one of the
mercenaries who is being held pris-
oner, one who seems to have known
Callan long before Angola, should
sum up his view of his chief —
whom he thought dead — in a
manner very much like that of the
chief's chief, John Banks: “The
Colonel,” said Mclntyre, “had great
worth as a military leader but was
undeniably a crimina]l maniac.”






